* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 65

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

31 October 1997

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE
FCCC SUBSIDARY BODIES
30 OCTOBER 1997
Delegatesto the eighth session of the Ad Hoc Group onthe
Berlin Mandate (AGBM-8) metin Plenary in morning, afternoon
and evening sessions.

AGBM PLENARY

Chair Raul Estrada-Oyuelaconvened the AGBM Plenary to
address non-group outcomes. He said that although positionswere
still far apart, some progress had been madein what wasthefirst
round of negotiations on aconsolidated text. He wondered whether
thenature of diverging views, enclosed in bracketsin the papers
produced by the non-groups, could be explained to "an intelligent
public not imbued with the subtl eties of negotiations.”

POLICIES AND MEASURES

The Chair of the non-group on policiesand measures (P& Ms),
Bakary Kante (Senegal), introduced a paper and said the group
reached consensus on one of five sub-paragraphsinthe AGBM
Chair’ sdraft text. On the chapeau, he noted that areferenceto a
specific article had been bracketed pending outcomeson voluntary
commitments. He said the group had agreed on thefirst part of a
sub-paragraph on theimplementation and adoption of P& Mshby
Annex | Partiesto achieve QEL ROs but had disagreed on apart
listing P& Msunder an annex. Two bracketed alternatives appeared
for asub-paragraph addressing the need to "try to avoid" or "take
into account” adverse effectswhenimplementing P& Ms. No
agreement wasreached on languageindicating that Annex | Parties
shall coordinatetheimplementation of P& Mslisted under an
annex. Two proposed annexeslisting P& Mswere attached to the
document.

TheUS, supported by CANADA, JAPAN and AUSTRALIA
proposed bracketing text that ""the COP/M OP shall assessthe appli-
cation of P&Ms.” The EU proposed merging two bracketed alter-
nativesreferring to P& Mslistedinan annex. CANADA, theUS
and JAPAN said that proposal s on annexes had not been negoti-
ated. JAPAN favored an alternative stating that P& Msshall be
adopted in accordancewith national circumstances. HUNGARY
noted itsacceptance of coordinated P& Ms. The EU, the G-77/
CHINA and AUSTRALIA agreed that P& M s should not belisted
inan annex but should beincorporated into the Protocol. TheUS
expressed itspreferencefor listing P& Msunder an annex.
CAMBODIA calledonal Partiesto show someflexibility.

The Chair asked for comments on the COP/M OP assessment
sentence. TheUS, CANADA and AUSTRALIA preferred removal
or brackets. The EU disagreed. SLOVENIA said the sentence
could bemoved.

The Chair ruled that there was consensusto retain the text
except for three countries. CHINA asked if thetext would be
communicated to Kyoto with brackets. The Chair said nothing is
agreed until everythingis.

TheUSraised apoint of order that there was no consensus. The
Chair said delegates could challenge hisdecision under the rules of
procedure. TheUS, CANADA and VENEZUELA said therecould
not be consensusif delegations objected. VENEZUELA chal-
lenged theruling. The Chair noted that a2/3 vote wasrequired to
overcometheruling and called for avote.

EGY PT said del egationswerereferring to unanimity. The
Chair’ sruling on consensus reflected his sense of the negotiations.
The Chair said it was hecessary to distinguish between unanimity
and consensus. IRAN and KUWAIT requested alegal opinion. The
US proposed that the Chair produce atext of hisconclusions. He
said hefeared voting on every paragraph and bracket. VENE-
ZUELA accepted that the Chair had taken the sense of the meeting.
The Chair said hisruling meant this. MAURITANIA said every
decision should beleft to Kyoto. HUNGARY asked delegatesto
"cool down."

SAUDI ARABIA said adoptions at this stage were meaning-
less. All amendmentswill beforwarded to Kyoto. He asked the
Chair torelax. The Chair said with the challenge withdrawn, there
would benovote. Hesaid it was clear that agroup of countrieswas
trying to stop the Convention and the protocol, but hewould not be
"held hostage" to countries methodically trying to stop progress.

Thenon-group Chair noted two alternativesfor aparagraph on
adverse effectsof P& Ms. The US proposed areformulation calling
for assessment of the overall effect on climate change and Parties
social, environmental and economic situations. The G-77/CHINA
reguested afootnote linking theissueto aclean devel opment fund.

On cooperation between Partiesto enhance effectiveness, the
EU agreed to take up the question of voluntary application of
P& Msin discussionson voluntary commitments, and discuss
voluntary accession by non-Annex | countrieson abasiseasier
than quantitativetargets. After aJapanese amendment, the Chair
wondered if Partieswould eventually decideto reduce emissions
“asappropriate.”

EXISTING COMMITMENTS INARTICLE 4.1

The Chair of thenon-group on FCCC Article4.1, EvansKing
(Trinidad), introduced areport on hisgroup’ swork (FCCC/
AGBM/1997/CRP.I) on Articles 12 and 13. He said there hasbeen
substantial progress and that the text can establish the boundaries
for future negotiation. Thereisno agreement on: mitigation and
adaptation programmes, technol ogy transfer, and taking account of
climate changein policy. He said that specific measuresto advance
existing non-Annex | Party commitmentsand their relationto

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bull etin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ulst.ac.uk> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor isPamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isL angston JamesKimo|
Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.Thesustaining donorsof the Bulletin arethe Netherlands Ministry for Devel opment Cooperation, the Government of Canadaand the United States|
of America (through USAID). Support for this edition was also provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat and the Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. General support for the|
Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DID) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European
Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the
Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinionsexpressedin ENB
arethose of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom ENB may be used in non-commerical publicationsonly and only with
appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions of ENB are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 65 - 31 October 1997

Page 2

financial provision and technology transferisa
substantiveissue cutting acrossthe work. Once acommon under-
standing emerges, other bracketswill a so beresolved.

A representative of the environmental NGOs said the FCCC
articleappliesto all Parties. The Chair of the non-group hasfailed
to adequately advanceimplementation as obligations must be
tightly defined and measurable, producing text riddled with qualifi-
cationsand weak language. Advancement of Article4.1 commit-
mentsarelinked to technology transfer and supportivepolicies
including innovative approachesto lever private sector involve-
ment. Article4.1 should not be used to negotiate commitmentsfor
devel oping countriesthrough the back door.

The AGBM Chair noted that the Chapeau could be agreed with
unanimity.

Delegates debated the order of "national” and "regional "
programmesin asubparagraph oninventories. The G-77/CHINA
proposed deleting "models' and adding areferenceto adopted
guidelines. TheUSand NEW ZEALAND objected. POLAND
requested del etion of " cost-effective.” The EU objected.

TheG-77/CHINA objectedtoalist of "economically justified”
mitigation programmes, suggesting it represents new developing
country commitments and mirrorsthe P& Msannex still under
negotiation. Shehad similar objectionsto thefollowing subpara-
graph'slistsof adaptation programmes. She preferred deleting the
listsand retaining the G-77/CHINA'salternative, separately
describing Annex-1 and devel oping country programmes. She
amended the alternativeto include programmeinformationin
national communications. JAPAN, the EU and US preferred to
remove bracketsfromthemitigation list, noting that it isindicative.
TheUSsaid thelist isnot new commitmentsbut puts”flesh onthe
bones’ of Article4.1(b).

NEPAL added mountain devel opment to the adaptation list.
TheUS bracketed " protection measuresfor infrastructure” because
of fundingimplications.

Ontransfer of technology, the G-77/CHINA proposed the dele-
tion of aparagraph on promoting effective modalitiesfor transfers
becauseit would introduce new and unacceptabl e commitments
under the protocol. She supported an alternative paragraph, based
onthe FCCC and Agenda21. The US, supported by JAPAN and
CANADA, suggested combining elementsin thetwo paragraphs
but objected to referencesto “financial and fiscal incentives’ and
“ patent-protected environmentally sound technologies.”

On proceduresto ensurethat climate change considerationsare
takeninto account in governmental and intergovernmental deci-
sions, the USrecalled NGO support for environmental impact
assessment and promoting climatefriendly technology. The EU,
supported by the US, proposed areformulation, on theidentifica-
tion and implementation of procedures, specifying multilateral
development banks. The G-77/CHINA said the commitment
should not be subsumed in aprotocol that hasalimited thrust. This
would amount to undertaking anew commitment. She said the
referenceto multilateral development bankswould introducea
conditionality to financing. Thetext remainsin brackets.

On sharing information on national devel opment and use of
indicators, the G-77/CHINA objected to the paragraph because it
would amount to anew commitment under the protocol. The para-
graph remainsin brackets.

Chair Estradaremarked that Partieswill haveto limit the scope
of the protocol bel ow what was agreed in Berlin at some point.

On education and training, the USintroduced an amendment on
strengthening of national level education and training programmes,
removed bracketsfrom areferenceto training experts*“in particular
for developing countries,” and replaced areferenceto methodol o-
gieswith“modalities.”

On communi cations on implementation of commitmentsunder
the protocol, the G-77/CHINA said that communi cations should be
forwarded to the FCCC Parties. The US explained that for Parties
to the FCCC communicationswill goto the COP, for Partiesto the
protocol they will go asotothe protocol body. Hesaid arolein
devel oping guidelines should not beruled out for the MOP. The G-
77/CHINA said that she could not agreeto report to any body but
the COP.

QELROs

QELROs-1 non-group Chair Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho (Brazil)
introduced adocument resulting from thework of thetwo non-
groups. Henoted that key issueswere bracketed and hoped they
would beresolved in Kyoto. Heindicated that there had been
agreement on an article addressing supplementary information for
annual inventories of GHGsand national communications by
Annex | Parties. He pointed out that definition of valuesand dates
was pending, aswell asthe consideration of removalsby sinks
under QELROs. He hoped the AGBM would minimizetheissuesit
addressesregarding sinks, considering time constraintsat Kyoto.
Healso called attention to adefinition of "net" to beincluded inthe
Protocol.

Chair BoKjellén (Sweden) reported that further consultations
weretaking placeon QELROsfor Annex | Partieswith economies
intransition, that articles on emissionstrading and joint implemen-
tation were completely bracketed, that an article on national
communi cationswas agreed to, except for specific referencesto an
articleon voluntary commitmentsand to the Meeting of the Parties,
and that no agreement had been reached on voluntary commit-
ments.

The AGBM Chair suggested that three alternativeson QEL ROs
for Annex | Partiesbereferred assuchto COP-3. NEW
ZEALAND, supported by CANADA and JAPAN, indicated that
theissue of removal sby sinks had not been formally discussed by
the non-groupson QEL ROs. JAPAN, supported by the UK and
NAURU stated that referencesto "net" and "removalsby sinks"
that appeared inthetext should be bracketed. AUSTRALIA, NEW
ZEALAND, CANADA and RUSSIA saidthat referencesto "net”
should not be bracketed. The US said language on "removalsby
sinks" should not be bracketed.

The AGBM Chair ruled that therewould be " precautionary
brackets' around theword "net" until theissue of sinkswas settled.

EVENING SESSION

Inan evening session, del egates began discussionson the
QELROsnon-group reports. Asof 10:00 pm, they had considered
Article 3 (commitments), 3bis (joint fulfillment of obligations) and
Article4. Delegates debated retaining actual, rather than “ precau-
tionary,” bracketson referencesto "net" emissions, noting difficul-
tieswith the definition of anthropogenic sinks. Delegatesalso
discussed, inter alia: aG-77/Chinaproposal reflecting a"flat rate”
approach; flexibility for Partieswith economiesin transition under-
going the process of transition to amarket economy; joint fulfill-
ment of obligations; and bracketed referencesto budgets.Later in
the session, the US, supported by CANADA and AUSTRALIA,
suggested adding bracketed text on evolution of devel oping coun-
tries’ commitmentsto the article on existing commitments. The
Chair said hewould not add the text.

A revised text isexpected on Friday.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
AGBM: AGBM will meetinPlenary at 10:00 am.



